
1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Annual General 
Meeting 
The Georgina Centre for 

Arts and  Culture 

149 High St, Sutton, ON L0E 1R0 

Monday, September 18, 2023 

7:00 pm 

www.thegcac.ca 

http://www.thegcac.ca/


1  

 

 

Contents 

Welcome Message from the Board Chair, Linda Lyons .............. 2 

Message from our Executive Director ........................................ 4 

AGM Agenda ............................................................................... 6 

AGM Meeting Minutes – September 19, 2022 .......................... 7 

Schedule A - Financials ............................................................... 9 



2  

 
 

Welcome Message from the Board Chair, Linda Lyons 

 
A WARM WELCOME FROM OUR BOARD CHAIR 

Thank you and welcome to our Annual General Meeting Report. It is my distinct pleasure to offer this 
information on behalf of the team at the Georgina Centre for Arts and Culture (GCAC). Every year, GCAC 
hosts an AGM to wrap up the year that has passed, acknowledge our achievements, approve our audited 
financial statement, honour retiring board members, welcome new ones, recognize the strength and 
contribution of our staff and thank our community partners for their dedication in supporting arts and 
culture in Georgina and beyond. 

As I celebrate my first year as Board Chair, I am very proud of what we have been able to accomplish 
during this past year of change.  We re-opened our doors and invited the community back into our 
gallery space with our awe-inspiring exhibits, programming, and events.  Exhibitions in 2022/23 
featured “Georgina Unmasked” in March’ “7 Stories Awards Event” in May; our “Pride Exhibit” in June; 
“The Juried Art Show” in July to the “GCAC Permanent Collection” in September.    

We are about creating an inclusive community.  As part of the Pride celebrations, we invited the 
2SLGBTQI+ artists and creators to submit their works of art and we featured our artist of the month, 
Mila Darker, a new and upcoming talent.  The All Pride & No Prejudice show and Family Day BBQ were 
well organized by our own Grant Peckford!  

GCAC is filled with music during our Open Mic’s on the first Sunday of every month, and talent for our 
monthly Artist drop-in!  The summer camp kids have filled the Centre with laughter and excitement.   

This year we said farewell to outstanding Board Members: Brian Gibbs in 2022 and Anita David and Bill 
Majors in 2023.  Both Anita and Bill have dedicated over 6 years to GCAC and were presented with 
Lifetime Members at our AGM last year.  We are pleased to welcome Madalyn Calzavara as our newest 
Director.  

We have experienced great change, and with each year and every adaptation, we just keep getting 
better at what we do: inspiring growth through the power of art and culture.  None of this would be 
possible without the support of our members, donors, partners, and funders in 2022/23. We thank the 
Town of Georgia, Ontario Trillium Foundation, and the Government of Canada for their crucial financial 
support. We are also grateful to the many partners we collaborated with, most notably The Briars, Blue 
Heron Book Store, the Messhall Eatery, York Regional Police, and the Writers Community of York 
Region.   Thank you for continuing to support our mission to inspire growth through the power of art 
and culture.   And it would not be possible without you. 

THANK YOU! 

  

Linda R Lyons 

Board Chair  



3  

 
 

Message from our Executive Director 

 
I am thrilled and honoured to have been selected for the role as Executive Director with The Georgina 
Centre for Arts and Culture, starting my exciting work managing daily operations of the 
organization this past May. At the same time, Charlotte Hale was brought on as Artistic Director, and 
quite quickly became a valuable asset to this organization and its programs, with which her values and 
experience so firmly align. I would be remiss if I did not include Sarah Benjamin, our Administrative 
Coordinator, to whom we owe a debt of gratitude for supporting us as we dug into the operations and 
programming. Together, this small but mighty team is looking forward to many years of building 
exciting opportunities for artists and appreciators, creating a unique and innovative community hub 
that draws locals and visitors alike. 
 
We couldn’t do this incredible work without the support of our Board of Directors and the volunteers 
that work tirelessly, contributing an average of 90 hours a month towards the strategic direction and 
successful operation of the organization, and for the love of art.  
 
We are also grateful for the strong partnership we have with the Town of Georgina. Recognizing that 
culture is important to the quality of life of its residents, the Town works with us to provide 
opportunities that encompass the range of modes of participation, whether it be as creator or passive 
observer. We will move into the new year working towards more detailed and accurate organization 
performance indicators, including participation, growth, distribution, and impact. 
 
We have begun a revitalization of the gallery, continuing the path of its strategic direction towards 
strengthening our foundation, engaging our community, growing revenue streams, and building 
capacity. This includes: 
 
Exhibitions - We will host at least eight dynamic exhibitions a year that inspire and educate, sharing 
work from a broad range of artists, and have created a rotating permanent collection gallery and an 
Indigenous gallery.  
 
Workshops/Camps - We believe in the reinvigoration of arts education. Interest in the arts is only 
achieved through trial, and mastery of skill through practice. Workshops and camps are geared towards 
aspiring and practicing artists of all ages and have been running since July.  
 
Events - Culture is defined by the Oxford Dictionary as “the arts and other manifestations of human 
intellectual achievement regarded collectively.” We have a full calendar of host speakers, music, and 
reader series events, reaching a broad range of art, music, and literature-minded people in our 
community.  
 
Our aim is to provide an experience that showcases all that Georgina has to offer, weaving a collective 
narrative that connects guests to their surroundings, strengthens local economy, and builds community. 
On behalf of The Georgina Centre for Arts and Culture staff and volunteers, thank you for your 
continued participation and we hope you join us in the gallery.  
 

 
Christine Arnold 
Executive Director



4  

The Georgina Centre for Arts and Culture 
2023 Annual General Meeting 

149 High Street, Sutton West 
Monday, September 18th 7:00 PM 

Agenda 
 
 

1. Meeting called to order 

2. Welcome & Opening remarks – Board Chair, Linda Lyons 

3. Approval of Agenda 

4. Reading and Approval of AGM Minutes dated September 19, 2022 

5. Message from the Board Chair ‐ Linda Lyons 

6. Statement from The Town of Georgina 

7. Message from the Executive Director ‐ Christine Arnold 

8. Reports of Committees: 

Financial 

o Presentation and acceptance of Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 

December 31, 2022  

o Financial Statement Highlights – Board Treasurer, Dennison Harcharan 

o Appointment of Auditors for 2023 

Board of Directors 

o Introduction of new Board Members 

9. New Business 

10. Closing Remarks – Linda Lyons 

11. Adjournment 



5  

 
 

Annual General Meeting 

of the  

Georgina Centre for Arts and Culture 

Wednesday, September 19, 2022 

 
(Minutes recorded and prepared by Dee Lawrence) 

 
CALL TO ORDER: Bill Major, Chair of the Board of Directors, called the meeting to order at  
                                   7:04 p.m.  
 
WELCOME AND OPENING REMARKS: Bill Major made the observation that this is the first 
time the membership has been able to meet in person in three years because of the Covid 
19 pandemic restrictions. 
All board members [Bill Major, Meaghan McKinzey (Treasurer), Dee Lawrence, Brian Gibbs, 
Linda Lyons, Jodi Pridham – Manager of Client, Cultural and Community Services for the 
Town of Georgina, Dave Neeson – Town of Georgina Ward 3 Councillor, and Jeanne Faria 
– Executive Director] introduced themselves to the membership who were present, with the 
exception of Anita David (Vice Chair) and Brett Hill (Secretary), who were unable to be with 
us and sent their regrets. 
Bill Major offered a moment of reflection in remembrance of the late Queen Elizabeth II who 
passed away Sept. 8, and for whom Sept. 19 has been declared a National Day of Mourning. 
Bill expressed gratitude to the late Queen for her good service and the stability that she 
brought to us. He reminded us that for some, this is a challenging time because the monarchy 
represents the colonial influences that have shaped our nation. Bill hoped that the late Queen 
Elizabeth II will now rest in peace, and prayed that King Charles III’s reign will follow in the 
footsteps of his mother, and will be a positive influence in the world. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Moved by Sheila Dobson; Seconded by Elizabeth (Widit) 
McLean. 
                                                 Motion Carried. 
 
READING AND APPROVAL OF AGM MINUTES DATED AUGUST 18, 2021: 
Motion to approve the Minutes made by Widit McLean; Seconded by Tom Zsolt. 
Motion Carried. 
 
MESSAGE FROM THE BOARD CHAIR: Bill Major stated that this has been a year of 
change, and that we are not yet where we want to be, but we’re moving along and making 
some progress. Our biggest ongoing challenge is communication between the GCAC and 
the community/membership. We need a reciprocal partnership with the community. 
 
Bill extended gratitude to Dave Neeson, our Town Council representative, for his six years 
of service on the GCAC Board of Directors, as he sought to co-ordinate our efforts with the 
Town of Georgina in order to facilitate help and secure support for the Arts & Culture 
Centre. Dave is stepping down from the Board now, and this is the final meeting he will be 



6  

attending. 
 
There was also applause from our membership for our outgoing Chair, Bill Major, in 
recognition of his six years of service and leadership navigating through many challenging 
situations. 
 
STATEMENT FROM TOWN COUNCILLOR: Dave Neeson began by saying that the Town 
of Georgina is a partner of the GCAC, and always will be. He highlighted the many 
volunteer hours that Bill Major, Anita David and Meaghan McKinzey have contributed to the 
stability and success of the GCAC, especially in the early days six years ago. They put in a 
lot of blood, sweat and tears to bring the GCAC back to a place of growth. Dave said he will 
continue to support the work of the GCAC going forward, despite not being on the Board 
anymore. 
 
STATEMENT FROM THE MAYOR: Margaret Quirk shared that it was nice to be back to 
experiencing in-person interaction with others in the community. She commented that we 
have lots of talent here in Georgina to showcase, and it is nice to be able to focus on the 
work that our local artists create. Margaret wished Jeanne Faria well in her position as 
Executive Director. 
 
Bill Major responded that the ongoing support we receive from the Town of Georgina is 
VITAL to our success as an Arts and Culture Centre. 
 
MESSAGE FROM THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: Jeanne Faria said that the first thing she 
did as E.D. was to take the pulse of what was happening in our community. She organized 
a “round table” discussion to determine what’s working and what’s not working. She has 
been searching out new and emerging local artists, and there has been a great response to 
their work. 
 
There is a new Artist-in-Residence program beginning at the GCAC, and Andrea MacLeod 
has been chosen as the first artist to fulfill that role. A new Guest Curator program has also 
been initiated and a gentleman will be acting as our first guest curator very soon. A variety 
of voices are being presented. We are using local talent to facilitate cultural programming. A 
positive letter was read from a participant in the witchcraft programming that was offered 
recently, and she wrote that she was very happy about the experience she had here. 
Several members have expressed appreciation for creating an inclusive atmosphere at the 
GCAC, and local artist  
Theresa Cooney, who exhibited some of her artwork at the Centre earlier this year, said she 
feels at home here, and was grateful for the welcome she received. 
 
FINANCIAL REPORT:  

a) Financial Statement Highlights: Meaghan McKinzey reported that the Board was 

able to capitalize on various supports to help us maintain staff throughout the Covid 

pandemic. We were able to keep staff employed to help focus on other priorities. We 

received donations through Canada Helps and from Magna in 2020, and an Ontario 

Small Business Grant and a Trillium Grant in 2021.We were able to realize some 

retail sales in 2021. Without this kind of support, it would have been a more difficult 



7  

year financially. We were very fortunate to get government assistance to help us 

through these challenging pandemic years. 

 
b) Presentation of Audited Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 

2021: 

           Meaghan introduced Amanda De Rudder, the auditor from the firm Ascend, LLP 
based in Calgary, who gave the Auditors’ Report to us over a virtual connection, 
appearing to the membership via a large screen. There were no questions from the 
floor regarding the Auditor’s Report, which was accepted by the membership. 
Meaghan thanked Amanda for joining us virtually for the AGM. 

 
           Meaghan informed the membership that we need $220,000. annually to run the 

GCAC, and the Town provides us with a grant for half of that ($110,000.), so we 
need to bring in an additional $110,000. on a yearly basis to keep operating. 

 
c) Appointment of Auditors: Meaghan made the motion to delay the appointment of 

an auditor for next year, to give us some time to search for some other firms to 

tender, with a particular emphasis on looking locally for an auditor who can offer a 

more reasonable fee for service, since Ascend, LLP in Calgary have just raised their 

fees quite a bit. Tom Zsolt seconded the motion. Motion Carried. 

 
GOVERNANCE BOARD: Presentation and acceptance of revised/updated By-Laws 
Linda Lyons explained that in 2022, we began working to update the by-laws which had not 
been revised since 2016. The by-laws now reflect current terminology, and have been 
made easier to read. The by-laws are a living document, and lawyer Iain Donnell has 
approved these changes and has agreed that we are in compliance. Widit McLean asked if 
the clause pertaining to “a member must be in good standing 3 months prior to the AGM in 
order to be able to vote” represents a change in the by-laws? The answer is “yes”.  
Tom Zsolt moved that we accept the by-law revisions as presented. Seconded by Widit 
McLean. 
Motion Carried. 
 
Announcements – Introduction of New Board Members: Outgoing Board Chair Bill 
Major introduced Linda Lyons as a recent addition to the board, and our new Chair of the 
Board of Directors. Linda stated that she is committed to this Board and its success. Linda 
has 30 yrs. of leadership experience at IBM, has been a Gala Chair, and on the Executive 
of the non-profit organization ACT-CO (Association of Community Theatres – Central 
Ontario) where she has gained much experience driving Arts and Culture, and fundraising. 
Linda’s family has vacationed in Georgina during the summer months for many years, as a 
result of their involvement with the Salvation Army. She and her family currently reside in 
Whitby. 
 
Bill also introduced Brian Gibbs as our new Vice Chair. Brian’s background is in 
documentary film, theatre for kids and adults, and in music and dance. He enthusiastically 
supports change, and is relying on our members and volunteers to help make the GCAC 
the hub of a thriving artistic community. 



8  

 
Bill recommended two new prospective board members to the membership for their 
approval: 

1) Tom Zsolt – an engineer, businessman, and photographer who graduated from 

Western University 40 years ago. His wife Jennifer is a painter. 

 
2) Dennison Harcharan – has worked in government agencies, and in the oil and gas  

industry. He has agreed to take on the role of Treasurer. Originally from Trinidad, he 
and his family moved to Georgina in April 2022. 

 
Widit McLean moved to approve the appointments of Tom Zsolt and Dennison 
Harcharan to the GCAC Board of Directors; Seconded by Sheila Dobson.  
Motion Carried. 

 
MEMBERSHIP – Lifetime Members:  
Executive Director Jeanne Faria appointed two new lifetime members to the GCAC.   
Receiving lifetime memberships were Bill Major for his outstanding dedication to the 
community of Georgina and to this Arts and Culture Centre; and Anita David for her tireless 
work over the past six years spent sustaining and strengthening this artistic community. 
Both Bill and Anita have been extremely generous with their time and have worked very 
hard as an extraordinary team to help rebuild the GCAC. They have been incredibly 
supportive and passionate about securing a place for the Arts to thrive in Georgina for 
generations to come. 
 
Volunteer Recognition: Lynda Quirino, Volunteer Co-ordinator, recognized Bette Banks and 
Marion Reidner as outstanding volunteers at the GCAC, and the Board and membership 
expressed their gratitude to Bette and Marion for the many hours they have dedicated to 
assisting with various events and activities. They responded by saying it was nice to be 
appreciated and made to feel that they have a special place at the GCAC. 
 
CLOSING REMARKS: In reflecting on the impact the GCAC has had through the years on 
this community, Bill Major shared a story about a young woman he met during the PRIDE 
celebrations this past June. She revealed that she got her creative inspiration here at the 
Centre when she was just 4 years old, and is now a student at the Ontario College of Art and 
Design. It is stories like these that remind us of the importance of our work here at the GCAC 
and the difference it can make in the lives of others, and in the culture of our community. 
 
 
Tom Zsolt made the Motion to Adjourn the Annual General Meeting at 8:28 p.m. 



 

 

 

Schedule A – 
 
 

 
Audited Financial Statements 

 
Year end 2022 




































